
City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 1 

APPROVED 
 

                              City of Ypsilanti 
City Council Goal Setting Minutes 

                 Tuesday, January 26, 2016 
                  7:00 p.m. 

                   Spark East – 215 W. Michigan Avenue 
Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER – 

 
The Meeting was called to order at 7:06 p.m. 

 

II. ROLL CALL – 
 

Council Member Anne Brown Present  Council Member Robb  Present 
Council Member Nicole Brown Present  Council Member Vogt  Present 

Council Member Murdock Present  Mayor Edmonds   Present 
Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson Present 

 

III. INVOCATION – 
 

Mayor Edmonds asked all to stand for a moment of silence. 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE –  

 
“I pledge allegiance to the flag, of the United States of America, and to the Republic for 

which it stands, one nation, under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.” 
 

V. AGENDA APPROVAL –  

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson moved, seconded by Council Member Brown to approve the 

agenda. 
 

On a voice vote, the motion carried, and the agenda was approved. 
 

VI. INTRODUCTIONS – 

 
Mayor Edmonds introduced William Teepen a resident of Ward 1.  

 
VII. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION – 

 

None 
 

VIII. REMARKS FROM THE MAYOR – 
 

None 
 

 

 



City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 2 

IX. PRESENTATIONS –  

 
1. Eastern Washtenaw Economic Development – Beth Ernat 

 
Economic Development Director Beth Ernat stated during the last Council Meeting 

there was discussion of Economic Development in Eastern Washtenaw County.  Ms. 

Ernat stated a committee of herself, Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson, and Council Member 
Murdock was formed in order to address the matter and a meeting will be scheduled 

in the future with Ypsilanti County Commissioner Ronnie Peterson.  Ms. Ernat said 
this meeting will voice that Ypsilanti would like to be involved in County decisions in 

Eastern Washtenaw County and to inform the County of the City’s current plans for 
economic development.  Ms. Ernat stated she will be providing Council with 

information during the next City Council regular meeting on February 2nd. 

 
2. Traffic Standards 

 
Police Chief Tony DeGiusti provided an overview of how the Traffic Commission 

operates. 

 
Council Member Vogt stated neighborhood groups are consistently voicing concern 

over speeding.  Mr. Vogt said whatever process the City has for this issue is not 
bringing relief to citizens.  Mr. Vogt stated he now feels that if a majority of residents 

on a street want traffic calming measures and are willing to pay for them they should 
be provided.  Mr. Vogt stated the City could use the lowest costing traffic calming 

device to show the people that City government will do something to eliminate the 

high end speed.  Mr. Vogt said the studies that are performed are often skewed as a 
result of speeders reducing their speed when the see the tracking device.  Mr. Vogt 

stated the policy needs to be changed to allow for residents to address these 
concerns.  Mr. Vogt said the Department of Public Services and the Police 

Department need to decide what measures will be reasonable to stop individuals 

from driving at speeds upwards of 50 mph. 
 

Mayor Edmonds asked staff for perspective that they might have learned from living 
in other communities.  Chief DeGiusti responded there was an issue of speeding on 

Stanley and Hemphill streets resulting from the construction on Prospect Rd and 

speed bumps were put on those streets.  Chief DeGiusti said then residents began 
asking for two speed bumps on both streets because one wasn’t sufficient.  Chief 

DeGiusti said he tried to replicate the speeds residents said cars were traveling and 
he was unable to do so even in his police cruiser.  Chief DeGiusti said part of the 

problem is a perception issue and he does not know what will necessarily satisfy 
people but the City does have a speed bump policy which includes a lot of what 

Council Member Vogt suggested.  Chief DeGiusti said if residents on a street wish to 

install a speed bump they have the ability to pay for it and DPS will install it.  DPS 
Director Stan Kirton clarified DPS could install temporary speed bumps. 

 
Council Member Vogt stated the problem with Douglas Street is that the residents did 

not know that the test had occurred and asked that conclusions of the Traffic 

Committee be placed on the City’s website.  Mr. Vogt asked the measures available 
be listed along with their cost on the website.  Mr. Vogt asked if speed bumps are 

the only measure available or if there were any reason the City would refuse to 
install a speed bump.  Mayor Edmonds responded possible measures are listed in the 

policy.  Mr. Vogt replied on what criteria are those measures available.  Mr. Vogt 



City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 3 

added he does not want to spend a lot of time on this tonight and is interested in 

tweaks to the City’s current policy so it is clear to members of the public. 
 

Council Member Murdock stated OHM Engineering did provide the City with 
specifications for speed bumps that cost around $12,000 to $15,000.  Mr. Kirton 

replied that is the cost of speed humps not speed bumps.  Mr. Murdock added 

residents can always petition a special assessment to have speed control measures 
installed.  Mr. Murdock stated in the future as the City begins to reconstruct streets 

they should be designed with traffic control measures. 
 

Council Member Vogt stated he would be happy to meet with the City Manager to 
help tweak the policy making it easier for residents to understand. 

 

Mayor Edmonds stated there was a lot of discussion about this policy last spring and 
initially it was sent back to staff.  Ms. Edmonds said it has been less than a year 

since this policy has been approved and does not see amending the policy other than 
adding a communication aspect is necessary.  Ms. Edmonds stated she is wary of 

allowing residents the ability to install traffic control measures if they have the 

money to do so because of how it can impact other City tasks.  Ms. Edmonds stated 
when the policy was approved last year there was discussion about creating a 

brochure for the policy. 
 

Council Member Murdock stated the biggest issue is budgetary constraints and 
Ypsilanti Township budgets $100,000 a year on speed control measures. 

 

Mr. Kirton asked if a special assessment is being used won’t each resident involved in 
the assessment need to be willing to pay for the traffic control measures.  Mr. Vogt 

responded he is not suggesting a special assessment and explained what he is saying 
that if 60% of the residents want a speed control measure and are willing to finance 

to have it installed the City should install it.  Council Member Murdock stated there 

have been a lot of discussions regarding special assessments recently and this would 
be a legitimate way to finance speed control measures.  Mayor Edmonds asked if 

residents would need to buy-in to the assessment.  Mr. Murdock responded City 
Ordinance requires a certain percentage of residents agree to the special 

assessment.  Mr. Murdock added the City could also split the cost with the residents. 

 
City Manager Lange stated the Road Commission used special assessments for local 

roads and it required 51% buy-in. 
 

X. MOTIONS/RESOLUTIONS: 
 

Resolution No. 2016-020, supporting Flint City Council  

 
Whereas, Michigan cities relying on lead pipes to provide drinking 

water should monitor lead leaching into the water system; and 
  

Whereas, the Flint Water Crisis is the result of contamination of the 

drinking water in Flint and poses serious long-term health threats; and 
  

Whereas, Governor Snyder has declared Flint to be in a state of 
emergency and ordered public outreach to the citizens of Flint about 

the crisis and 
  



City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 4 

Whereas, President Obama signed an emergency declaration 

authorizing federal agencies to coordinate relief efforts to lessen the 
burden and hardship on local residents; and 

  
Whereas, we are concerned about the health and welfare of those 

affected; and 

  
Whereas, the City of Ypsilanti is a partner in the Washtenaw Water 

Drive to assist the Flint Community. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That lead poisoning is completely 
preventable; That $100 million in state and federal funding be used to 

assist with immediate health needs and underground infrastructure 

measures; and That the City of Ypsilanti City Council on behalf of its 
community supports the Council and people of Flint and urges the 

State of Michigan to provide a system of water delivery with less 
corrosive agents to service lines, mains and connectors for the 

residents of Flint, MI. 

 
OFFERED BY:  Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson 

SUPPORTED BY:  Council Member Anne Brown 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson stated she would like this resolution sent to Flint’s City Council and 
administration but it also be sent to the Governor.  Mayor Edmonds asked that a copy be sent to 

the state legislature. 

 
Council Member Vogt asked where the figure of $100 million came from.  Council Member Anne 

Brown responded that is the amount from the federal government and the amount added by the 
Governor to the state budget.  Council Member Murdock stated the number that he saw was $1.5 

billion.  Ms. Anne Brown responded that amount was to repair and it was said the $1.5 billion 

was excessive.  Mr. Murdock added that $80 million from the Federal Government is a loan to the 
state and added he feels is going to take a lot more money.  Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson asked if 

Council Member Murdock is suggesting the amount in the resolution be raised.  Mr. Murdock 
responded he thinks the amount should reflect the funds necessary to solve the problem.  Ms. 

Richardson replied if Council wishes to make that change the resolution could read “$100 million, 

and not limited two”.  Council Member Nicole Brown stated the resolution could read “at least but 
not limited to $100 million.” 

 
Council Member Vogt moved, seconded by Council Member Nicole Brown to 

amend the resolution to read “That an amount of $100 million but not limited 
to, in state and federal funding be used as a starting point …” 

 

On a voice vote, the motion carried, and Resolution No. 2016-020 was amended. 
 

Mayor Edmonds recognized the Community Development Intern Rasheed Atwater who was 
deployed by the National Guard to Flint and proud that he was representing Ypsilanti.  Ms. 

Edmonds said Ypsilanti is also a part of the Washtenaw Water Coalition for Flint.  Ms. Edmonds 

added there is a Go Fund Me Account raising money to assist in Flint.  Ms. Edmonds stated a 
number of Ypsilanti Area residents took it upon them to drive water to Flint and recognized Brian 

Foley who was also featured on CNN this week. Mayor Edmonds said Mr. Foley has challenged 
everyone in the community to donate their weight in water and has partnered with a local 

business Deluxe Rental who has challenged him to fill their warehouse.  Ms. Edmonds stated 
individuals can contact Deluxe Rental to donate their weight in water.  Ms. Edmonds added water 



City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 5 

can also be dropped off at the Corner Brewery.  Council Member Anne Brown stated if individuals 

are unable to donate water they can provide assistance by distributing water, test kits, and 
filters.  Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson stated Judge Mathis will be in Flint on Saturday, January 30th 

at 11:00 a.m. for a town hall meeting and then going door to door delivering water.  Ms. 
Richardson stated he will be bringing attorneys with him to ensure the people of Flint will not 

rush to settle. 

 
Assistant to the City Manager Ericka Savage stated the City was contacted by EMU organizations 

and Ypsilanti Community Schools to organize a drop-off center.  Ms. Savage said the City agreed 
to volunteer the Fire Station as a drop-off center and will operate until February 12th from 8:00 

a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson stated the Michigan Black Caucus will also be 
conducting a water drive, but will focus on water by the gallon because people need water for 

things other than drinking.  Mayor Edmonds asked if it is okay to drop larger containers of water 

at the Fire Station.  Chief Anthouard responded in the affirmative. 
 

Mayor Edmonds thanked all the members of the community who have stepped in to help the 
people of Flint.  Ms. Edmonds stated friends of hers that live in Flint have informed her that in 

terms of a long term place to donate funds is the Community Foundation of Greater Flint. 

 
On a roll call, the vote to approve Resolution No. 2016-020 as amended was as follows: 

 
Council Member N. Brown Yes  Council Member Robb  Yes 

Council Member Murdock Yes  Mayor Edmonds   Yes 
Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson Yes  Council Member Vogt  Yes 

Council Member A. Brown Yes 

 
VOTE: 

 
YES: 7  NO: 0 ABSENT:   0  VOTE:  Carried 

 

Resolution No. 2016-020 as approved reads as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION ON FLINT WATER CRISES 
   

Whereas, Michigan cities relying on lead pipes to provide drinking 

water should monitor lead leaching into the water system; and 
  

Whereas, the Flint Water Crisis is the result of contamination of the 
drinking water in Flint and poses serious long-term health threats; and 

  
Whereas, Governor Snyder has declared Flint to be in a state of 

emergency and ordered public outreach to the citizens of Flint about 

the crisis and 
  

Whereas, President Obama signed an emergency declaration 
authorizing federal agencies to coordinate relief efforts to lessen the 

burden and hardship on local residents; and 

  
Whereas, we are concerned about the health and welfare of those 

affected; and 
  

Whereas, the City of Ypsilanti is a partner in the Washtenaw Water 
Drive to assist the Flint Community. 



City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 6 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That lead poisoning is completely 
preventable; That an amount of $100 million but not limited to, in state 

and federal funding be used as a starting point to assist with 
immediate health needs and underground infrastructure measures; and 

That the City of Ypsilanti City Council on behalf of its community 

supports the Council and people of Flint and urges the State of 
Michigan to provide a system of water delivery with less corrosive 

agents to service lines, mains and connectors for the residents of Flint, 
MI. 

 
XI. DISCUSSION ITEMS –  

 

1. Recap of Desired Outcome – Peter Letzmann 
 

Peter Letzmann provided an overview of what has been discussed in the past four meetings.  Mr. 
Letzmann listed his suggested goals: 

 

1. Near term Finances. 
2. Water Street property. 

3. Dispose of City owned property to assist in City financial situation. 
4. Public Safety:  Police, Fire, and code enforcement. 

5. Community outreach. 
6. Staff wellness and work satisfaction. 

7. Environmental sustainability.   

8. Accountability to achieving the stated goals and the measurement of results. 
 

Mr. Letzmann stated City policies should all fit into the listed goals and if these are not the goals 
they should be amended to better suit the objectives of Council.  Mr. Letzmann stated through 

the four meetings he has spent with Council he has made some observations.  Mr. Letzmann said 

one of those observations is that 10% of conflicts begin with a difference of opinion and the 
other 90% of conflict is due to the tone of voice and lack of communication.  Mr. Letzmann 

suggested more can be accomplished if Council was nicer to one another.  Mr. Letzmann 
suggested that Council try to separate the issues from the person, utilize fact rather than 

opinions, and don’t let personalities, histories, ideologies influence objectivity.  Mr. Letzmann 

suggested that Council value the relationships it has formed and validate the individual and don’t 
interrupt them.  Mr. Letzmann stated Council should remember that it does not operate as 

individuals.  Mr. Letzmann said Council needs to be aware of its choice of words and that some 
words connotation can have a negative impact and be mindful of your body language when you 

are speaking.  Mr. Letzmann stated one of the most important things about communication is the 
impact of your words not the intent of those words.  Mr. Letzmann stated building trust is a 

difficult thing to do but establishing an environment of congeniality can be done through social 

interactions. 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson stated there is a provision in the City Charter that states four 
members of Council cannot get together outside of a meeting because of quorum rules and 

asked how Council can get around that.  Mr. Letzmann responded he has read the City Charter 

and he is not certain that there is a limit on social interactions.  City Attorney John Barr replied 
the problem is if there is a quorum of Charter then it constitutes a meeting and must be a public 

meeting, however, there is an exception in the Open Meetings Act for chance encounters and 
social events.  Mr. Letzmann added Council would not be allowed to talk about business at those 

events. 
 



City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 7 

Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson stated she was present for Mr. Letzmann’s meeting at Eastern 

Michigan but was in the hospital for the other three meetings.  Ms. Richardson asked what 
Council is going to do with the goals Mr. Letzmann has listed and said a next step needs to be 

decided.  Mayor Edmonds suggested the next step would be to review the best practice guide for 
Council.  Ms. Edmonds offered to meet with Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson to go through the guide 

and digest that information.  Council Member Vogt responded he agrees with the proposal and 

said from what he has observed Council is already instituting many of the things that Mr. 
Letzmann has listed.  Mr. Vogt added Council has certainly had a friendlier tone. 

 
9. Alternate Budget Recovery Plan – Ralph Lange 

 
City Manager Lange provided a presentation on an alternate budget recovery plan. (attached) 
 

Council Member Murdock asked if the last payment on the road millage is in Fiscal Year 2016-
2017.  Mr. McGow responded in the affirmative. 

 
Mr. Kirton asked what the duration of the bond is.  Mr. McGow responded until 2030. 

 

Council Member Robb asked if the City issues two bonds can the millage be used for only one 
bond.   

 
Attorney and Counselor at Law Patrick McGow of Miller Canfield, responded in the affirmative and 

said the ballot question must indicate what the millage would pay for and could be written to 
limit to only one bond.  Mr. Robb asked if the City would need to pay another $150,000 to 

refinance the second set of bonds.  Mr. McGow responded no, but the idea behind not 

refinancing the whole piece was so the City could pay the remainder off.  Mr. Robb asked if the 
numbers had been run on that scenario and said the second bond does not have to refinance 

immediately.  Mr. Robb asked if it would make more sense to refinance the second bond later 
and use the millage to pay the first bond.  Mr. Lange responded he would be opposed to that 

because the City has a lot of assets that can be used to pay off the debt.  Mr. Lange added staff 

is proposing putting $1.8 million toward the pay down of the debt.  Mr. McGow stated not doing 
the bonds simultaneously is an option the City has.  Mr. Robb responded that is an option in the 

future and added if done now the City would save $3 million.  Mr. McGow replied he is not sure 
that is correct and most communities would refinance the whole amount to achieve the interest 

costs savings.  Mr. McGow said what the City has decided to do is to not refinance the entire 

amount and try to pay down what has not refinanced.  Mr. McGow said that could result in the 
City paying more in interest in the future. 

 
Mr. Lange stated if the debt millage is accepted by the voters the City should be in good 

condition but if not then there will need to be another discussion. 
 

Council Member Murdock stated the City has been wrestling with this issue for the past 15 years.  

Mr. Murdock stated this plan has the opportunity to help solve that issue by doing several things 
buying down some of the debt, refinancing part of it, and if the millage is passed by the voters 

there will be a funding mechanism tied to the debt.  Mr. Murdock stated this is a great 
opportunity but it will be a difficult sell to the voters because Water Street is toxic.  Mr. Murdock 

said he has spoken to many people recently and they support this plan. 

 
Mayor Edmonds asked if May is the deadline for August ballot items.  City Clerk Frances McMullan 

responded she would look up the exact date for Council.  She responded the date is May 10th. 
 

Mayor Edmonds stated according to an interpretation of a new law there is a gag order to discuss 
ballot issues.  Council Member Murdock added a suit has been filed which basically shuts down 



City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 8 

City resources but those were City resources that were already shutdown and there are creative 

ways to get around the gag order.  Mr. McGow stated the state did sign a law for prohibitions of 
speech by elected officials and governments using resources.  Mr. McGow stated his law firm filed 

a law suit on behalf of many school districts requesting an injunction.  Mr. McGow clarified what 
the statute says is within 60 days of an election public resources cannot be used to do mailings of 

more than 500 or use broadcasting sources.  Mr. McGow said the issue is City Council would not 

be able to discuss a ballot question at a meeting. 
 

Mayor Edmonds stated she is in support of the City Manager’s proposal for a budget recovery 
plan.  Ms. Edmonds said there needs to be discussion on Council’s intent on the other road 

millage.  Council Member Vogt responded his understanding is to replace the other millage once 
it drops off it would require another vote of the people and he does not think there is any reason 

to say anything other than that.  Council Member Murdock added the millage would also have to 

be tied to a debt issue.  Mr. McGow said what is essentially happening is the road debt millage is 
being replaced with the Water Street debt millage.   

 
Council Member Vogt stated both Plan A and Plan B must be approved together as a package 

and furthered clarified the streetlight assessment must be passed with the caveat that if the 

millage passes the streetlight assessment would be canceled.  Mr. Vogt stated that needs to be 
explained to the public because the public will speculate about it if it isn’t.  Council Member Robb 

responded he will not support both items together and if Council Member Vogt wants to pass a 
streetlight assessment he will need four votes.  Mr. Vogt responded both should be approved and 

if the Water Street Debt millage is successful the streetlight assessment is canceled.  Mr. Robb 
stated the great thing about plan A is that it will solve the Water Street debt problem and Plan B 

does not solve the Water Street Debt problem.  Council Member Murdock stated Mr. Vogt wants 

to pass a streetlight millage that can be removed if the Water Street millage is passed by the 
voters and he expects the voters to trust Council.  Mr. Vogt responded in the affirmative because 

Council is being forthright and the language will be specific.  Council Member Robb added he 
believes that would doom the approval of a Water Street debt millage.  Mr. Murdock added 

Council needs to explain to the public that a Water Street Debt Millage is the best way to solve 

the problem and there will be consequences to the City if it isn’t past.  Mr. Robb said threatening 
voters with an either or proposition will kill the possibility of the passing of a millage.  Mr. Robb 

said this is a very friendly millage and that would poison it.  Mr. Vogt disagreed and said because 
the language could be very specific.  Mr. Vogt added the $300,000 in discussed cuts must be 

made as soon as possible and layout what the cuts would be if the millage is not passed. 

 
Council Member Murdock stated he assumes the proposed cuts and additional revenue in the City 

Manager’s plan will occur no matter what happens.  Mr. Murdock said the payment of the debt 
this year is $1.4 million and the deficit of this year is projected to be $1 million and if these two 

items go through the City can remove that deficit.  Mr. Murdock added if the City sells property it 
can reduce the terms of the millage and if the millage is not passed the City will have bigger 

issues then calculating a streetlight assessment per parcel.  Mr. Murdock concluded he would like 

to put all the effort into something that will solve the problem.  Council Member Vogt responded 
his concern is if the City only tries for the millage and don’t lock in the contingencies and 

alternatives of what could happen is that voters will assume if the millage is passed a streetlight 
assessment will be imposed anyway.  Mr. Vogt said the plan for whichever way the vote goes 

needs to be clear to the public. 

 
Council Member Anne Brown stated she is in support of Plan A and said it meets the objectives of 

the City.  Ms. Anne Brown said she understands Council Member Vogt’s reasoning but that would 
kill the millage.  Ms. Anne Brown said voters get one day and they want to know exactly what 

they are voting on, not what the contingencies are.  Council Member Nicole Brown stated she is 
in support of Plan A and Council would need to act as a united front providing the same message 



City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 9 

to the residents of this City.  Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson added she supports Plan A and said the 

Plan should be kept simple for the voters. 
 

Mayor Edmonds stated Council Member Vogt has expressed a need to have agreed upon plan of 
where the cuts would be coming from.  Council Member Vogt responded if the millage does not 

pass Plan B will be put into action and asked if that is the consensus of Council.  Mr. Lange 

responded if Plan A is not accepted by the voters if Plan B is ready to implement it could absorb 
some of the financial stress of the City.  Mr. Lange added if the voters do approve Plan A and 

Council does not approve Plan B the City would go bankrupt.  Council Member Murdock replied 
one of the advantages of Plan A is the public makes the decision.  Mr. Murdock said if it does not 

pass Council will have to pass Plan B which will also not be accepted by the public.  Ms. Edmonds 
stated what should be told to a constituent who asks what happens if the millage is not 

approved.  Mr. Murdock responded the message would be the City would have a budgetary hole 

of $700,000 to $800,000 which the City would either need to find revenue for or it will need to 
make cuts.  DPS Director Stan Kirton stated Council should be consistent in their message to the 

public.   
 

Council Member Vogt stated all these issues have to be dealt with by vote resolved as a total 

package.  Mr. Vogt added the plan and its contingencies need to be decided and laid out within 
the next few weeks.  Mr. Vogt said the public will believe it is the plan of Council to have both 

the millage and the streetlight assessment unless it is in writing and clear that it is not.   
 

Mayor Edmonds stated all votes to date have provided staff direction and Council Member Vogt 
suggestion would be similar to that.  Council Member Murdock responded Council will need to 

approve a budget before the vote for the millage and in that process both a budget including 

Plan A and one including Plan B would need to be developed.  Mr. McGow responded this millage 
would not be included in the budget for FY 2016-2017.  Mr. Murdock responded some of the 

ramifications of the millage will affect the budget.  Ms. Edmonds said where cuts would occur 
would be a part of that process and would be affected an approval of the millage.  Mr. Murdock 

stated Council needs to put its focus on passing this millage and a ballot campaign takes a lot of 

work and money. 
 

Council Member Anne Brown stated there needs to be a positive and consistent message 
presented to the voters from Council with the understanding at this table that if it does not pass 

there are other options. 

 
Mayor Edmonds asked Council Member Robb for more clarification on why he is opposed to 

approving Plan B as a contingency.  Council Member Robb responded he and Mayor Pro-Tem 
Richardson were on Council when both of the City Income Tax proposals were put to a vote of 

the people which he was not in favor of.  Mr. Robb said during those two income tax campaigns 
were miserably run and information was circulated stating by 2017 the City would only afford 25 

General Fund employees.  Mr. Robb stated scare tactics do not work on voters and said the 

message of this campaign should be this will solve the problem. 
 

Mr. Lange stated there was a lot of work and sacrifice by City staff that kept the City from 
decreasing employment to 25 General Fund employees.  Mr. Lange added with continued good 

government and approval of the Water Street Debt the problem will be solved. 

 
Mayor Edmonds asked the City Manager what he would need to move forward.  Mr. Lange 

responded Council will need to approve the goals developed by Mr. Letzmann so they can be 
adopted officially at the next regular meeting. 

 



City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 10 

Mayor Edmonds asked how Plan A should be moved forward.  Mr. Lange responded he sees it 

was one of the goals.  Mr. Letzmann suggested this would be a resolution of intent and part of 
the resolution would be to direct the City Manager to prepare the necessary materials for the 

next meeting.  City Attorney John Barr suggested first to approve the goals and secondly to 
adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager to move forward with Plan A. 

 

Council Member Murdock moved, seconded by Council Member Vogt to 
approve Resolution No. 216-020A, Council Goals. 

 
Council Member Robb stated council was just given the final draft of the goals tonight and 

Council has not had time to read them.  Mr. Robb stated Council has another meeting in a week 
and it makes little sense to vote tonight.  Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson responded she believes it 

does because it gives staff a week to work on the goals and Plan A. 

 
On a roll call, the vote to approve Resolution No. 2016-020A was as follows: 

 
Council Member N. Brown Yes  Council Member Robb  No 

Council Member Murdock Yes  Mayor Edmonds   Yes 

Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson Yes  Council Member Vogt  Yes 
Council Member A. Brown Yes 

 
VOTE: 

 
YES: 6  NO: 1 (Robb) ABSENT:   0  VOTE:  Carried 

 

Council Member Murdock moved, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson to 
direct the City Manager to move forward with Plan A. 

 
Council Member Robb asked what the difference between Plan A and what was adopted in the 

beginning of January.  Council Member Murdock responded it includes a millage that will be 

voted on by the people.  Mr. McGow added there is two steps to Plan A and what the City 
Manager is looking for is authorization of the parameters for the bond sale.  Mr. McGow said he 

has already prepared a resolution Council could vote on next week and the bond team needs to 
know exactly how the millage is structured.  Mr. McGow suggested Council give authorization to 

the City Manager and Finance Director to adjust the bond sizing to get the correct millage.  Mr. 

McGow stated Tuesday, May 10th is the last day to submit proposals for the August ballot.  Mr. 
Mr. Murdock stated the only thing Council is voting on tonight is the Plan A recommendation in a 

general sense.   
 

Council Member Anne Brown stated from May 10th to June 2nd to speak with the public about the 
millage.  Mayor Edmonds added Council would not have to wait until May 10th it could begin 

speaking to the public once the ballot language is developed.  Mayor Pro-Tem Richards asked if 

Council is allowed to talk about the millage before May 10th.  Mr. McGow responded in the 
affirmative.  Mr. Barr stated the way he understands the law is that individual Council Members 

can talk about this issue anytime but Council as a body cannot talk about it within 60 days.  Mr. 
McGow responded in the affirmative. 

 

Council Member Robb stated this meeting was set up as a goal setting session and asking Council 
to vote on this is very disingenuous.  Mr. Robb stated it makes no sense to not wait until next 

week at a regularly scheduled meeting.  Mr. Robb said having this vote in a meeting that no 
public attended is not the way to start the campaign for this millage.  Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson 

stated the vote is authorizing the City Manager to work on Plan A but it still needs to be approved 
formally.  Mr. Barr agreed and said this meeting has been noticed properly.  Mr. Barr stated the 



City Council Goal Setting Meeting 

January 26, 2016 
 11 

reason for goal setting is to provide staff with direction and at the next meeting the details of the 

goals will be provided and voted on.  Mr. Lange stated Council has not approved the resolution 
approving the goals it approved the authorization to draft that resolution. 

 
On a roll call, the vote to approve Plan A was as follows: 

 

Council Member N. Brown Yes  Council Member Robb  No 
Council Member Murdock Yes  Mayor Edmonds   Yes 

Mayor Pro-Tem Richardson Yes  Council Member Vogt  Yes 
Council Member A. Brown Yes 

 
VOTE: 

 

YES: 6  NO: 1 (Robb) ABSENT:   0  VOTE:  Carried 
 

XII. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION – 
 

1. William Teepen, 424 Madison #2, stated as a voter he would like to know how 

bad the City’s financial situation is.  He asked how much he would need to pay 
individually in taxes if the millage is passed and what is the plan if the millage 

fails.  He also asked what his taxes are paying for.  He said people are going to 
eventually say they are tired of being taxed. 

  
XIII. REMARKS FROM THE MAYOR –  

 

 Stated she appreciates Mr. Teepen’s comments and that those will be the major 

concerns of the public with this ballot proposal. 
 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT – 
 

OFFERED BY:  Council Member Nicole Brown 

SECONDED BY:  Council Member Vogt 
 

On a voice vote, the motion carried, and the meeting adjourned at 9:29 p.m. 






































	1-26-16 Goal Setting Draft Minutes
	alternative budget recovery plan
	4 ATTACHMENT K

